
 
The mission of OCFEC is… 

CELEBRATION OF ORANGE COUNTY’S  
COMMUNITIES, INTERESTS, AGRICULTURE AND HERITAGE 

(with results justifying resources expended) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

32ND District Agricultural Association 
OCFEC Board of Directors 

Thursday, November 19, 2015 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Administration Building 
OC Fair & Event Center 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, California 

 
Board of Directors 

 
Gerardo Mouet, Board Chair 
Nick Berardino, Vice Chair 

Ashleigh Aitken, Member 
Stanley Tkaczyk, Member 

Douglas La Belle, Member 

Barbara Bagneris, Member 
Sandra Cervantes, Member 
Bao Nguyen, Member 

     Robert Ruiz, Member  
 
  

Secretary-Treasurer                32nd DAA Counsel 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP           Deborah Fletcher 
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC                                                      Office of the California Attorney General 
 

 
 
Those persons wishing to attend the meeting and who may require special accommodations pursuant to the provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act are requested to contact the office of the 32nd District Agricultural Association (714) 708-1500, at 
least five working days prior to the meeting to insure the proper arrangements can be made. 
 
At the discretion of the Board of Directors, all items appearing on this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be 
deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board of Directors.  The Board may convene to closed session pursuant to 
Government Code section 11126, subdivisions (a) and (e) to consider personnel evaluation and/or possible litigation.  Items may 
not necessarily be taken up in the order shown on this Agenda. This agenda, and all notices required by the Bagley-Keene 
Open Meeting Act are available on the Internet at: www.ocfair.com 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
November 19, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 4 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

All matters noticed on this agenda, in any category, may be considered for action as 
listed.  Any item not so noticed may not be considered. Items listed on this Agenda may 
be considered in any order, at the discretion of the chairperson. 

 
2.  THE MISSION OF OCFEC IS… 

Celebration of Orange County’s Communities, Interests, Agriculture and Heritage (with 
results justifying resources expended). 

 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.  ROLL CALL (Policy 4.5.2.B) 
 
5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES 
 
6.  MATTERS OF PUBLIC COMMENT  

Public comment is allowed on issues NOT on the current Agenda.  However, no debate 
by the Board shall be permitted on such public comments, and no action will be taken on 
such public comment items at this time, as law requires formal public notice prior to any 
action on a docket item. Speakers are requested to sign in prior to the start of the 
meeting and are limited to three minutes.   
 
Comments will be accepted on Agenda items during the meeting.  Speakers wishing to 
address the Board on items on the agenda are requested to sign in prior to the start of 
the meeting and identify the agenda item(s) on which you desire to address the Board. 
Speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held October 22, 2015 
 Action Item 
 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Policy 4.3.4) 
All matters listed under Consent Calendar are operational matters about which the Board 
has governing policies, implementation of which is delegated to the CEO. They will be 
enacted in one motion. There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the 
Board of Directors votes on the motion, unless members of the board, staff or public 
request specific items to be discussed separately and/or removed from this section. Any 
member of the public who wishes to discuss Consent Calendar items should notify the 
Chair of the Board, at the time requested and be recognized by invitation of the Chair to 
address the Board. 
 
A. Standard Agreements: SA-145-15FT; SA-260-15SP; SA-170-15FT; SA-201-15SP; 

SA-254-15FT; SA-255-15FT; SA-257-15FT; SA-261-15SP; SA-262-15SP; SA-265-
15YR; SA-266-15CF 

 
B.  Amendments: SA-253-15SP (Amend #1); SA-200-15SP (Amend #1) 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
November 19, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 4 

 
C. Interagency Agreements: none 
 
D. Letters of Understanding: none 
 
E. Rental Agreements: R-111-15; R-119-15; R-137-15; R-140-15; R-150-15; R-152-15; 

R-153-15; R-157-15; FT-065--15 
 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none 

 
G. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board discussion or to 
comments made before the Board are to be listed on the meeting agenda and 
included in the Board materials as an item of public disclosure.  
 
i. none. 

 
-End of Consent Calendar- 

 
9. GOVERNANCE PROCESS 
 

A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
Information Item 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for the 
purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a verbal 
update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not already on 
the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board meeting.  
 

i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Vice Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Director Berardino, Director La Belle) 
iii. Organizational Needs Assessment Task Force (Director La Belle, Director Ruiz) 

  
B.  Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project 

1. Authorize CFFA to Award Contract for Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement 
Project  

Action Item 
2. Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA to provide project management 

services for the Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project 
         Action Item   

 
C.  Review of Hourly Pay Rate for Seasonal Fair-Time Positions 

Information Item 
 

D.  Discussion Regarding Gun Shows at the OCFEC 
Information Item 
 
 
 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
November 19, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 4 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION (Closed to the Public) 

 
A. Pending Litigation – The Board will meet in closed session to consult with legal 

counsel regarding the following pending litigation. [Gov. Code section 11126(e).]  
 

i. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 
involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association. Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, the Board of Directors will decide whether to initiate litigation. 
(Govt. Code, § 11126, subd. (e).) 

 
ii. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 

involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association. Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation against the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association. (Govt. Code, § 11126, subd. (e).) 

 
11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 
 
12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  DECEMBER 17, 2015 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP  
Secretary-Treasurer                               
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC    Date of notice: 4:00 p.m. November 19, 2015 
 



 

OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1500 • ocfair.com 

 

 
 
The following financial reports as of October 31, 2015 are enclosed for your 
reference. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
As of October 31, 2015, OCFEC’s cash on hand is $36,313,482 an increase 
of $7,494,151 during 2015.  Operating activities have resulted in a net cash 
inflow of $10,674,516 to date.  Investing activities in the form of capital 
expenditures have resulted in a net outflow of $3,180,365 to date. 
 

Balance Sheet 
Accounts Payable remains high due to final Fair-related expenses not yet 
paid. These expenses will be paid in November. 
 

Income Statement 
October 2015 year-to-date revenues exceed expenses by $7,576,075, which 
is favorable to the budgeted net proceeds of $2,952,165 by $4,623,910.  
Excluding performance in the Major Projects category, for which the entire 
2015 budget of $528K was loaded in January, net proceeds year-to-date are 
favorable to budget by $4,323,653.  
  
Total year-to-date revenues of $38,083,788 are favorable to budget by 
$3,547,285 primarily due to favorable performance of the Fair.  Additionally, 
there has been favorable performance in Event Services Facility Rental 
Revenue of $344K and Event Services Other Event Revenue (parking sales, 
revenue from personnel services, equipment rental and concessions) of 
$903K.   
 

Total year-to-date operating expenses of $28,261,851 are favorable to budget 
by $803,545.  Expenses in most major categories are below or close to 
budget at this time.  Payroll and Related expense is favorable to budget by 
$920K due primarily to timing and unfilled positions.  



32nd DAA  

OC Fair & Event Center 

Year to Date 

Business Unit Financial Results 
 

As of October 31, 2015 



$0.0 

$5.0 

$10.0 

$15.0 

$20.0 

$25.0 

$30.0 

$35.0 

$40.0 
J
a
n
 

F
e
b
 

M
a
r 

A
p
r 

M
a
y
 

J
u
n
 

J
u
l 

A
u
g
 

S
e
p
 

O
c
t 

N
o
v
 

D
e
c
 

October  2015 YTD Revenue Performance  

Budget Forecast Forecast 



  

-$10.0 

-$5.0 

$0.0 

$5.0 

$10.0 

$15.0 

$20.0 

$25.0 

$30.0 

$35.0 

J
a
n
 

F
e
b
 

M
a
r 

A
p
r 

M
a
y
 

J
u
n
 

J
u
l 

A
u
g
 

S
e
p
 

O
c
t 

N
o
v
 

D
e
c
 

 October 2015 YTD Operating Expense Performance 

Budget Actual Forecast Linear (Actual) 



  

 (15.0) 

 (10.0) 

 (5.0) 

 -  

 5.0  

 10.0  

 15.0  

Self-Produced Events PacAmp Overhead $
 i
n

 m
il

li
o

n
s

 

YTD Actual YTD Budget 

October 2015 YTD Contribution Margin by Business Unit 



   OC Fair & Event Center  

 Cash Flow Summary by Business Unit  

 Year to Date as of October, 2015  

2015  2015  2014  2015  

 Year to Date   Year to Date   Year to Date   Full Year  

 Actual   Budget   Actual   Budget  

 Contribution Margins:  

    Self-Produced Events Business Unit                  11.7                  10.2                  13.4                  10.0  

    Events Business Unit                    4.3                    3.1                    4.1                    3.5  

    Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit                    1.7                    1.3                    1.7                    1.1  

 Total Business Unit Contribution Margin                  17.8                  14.6                  19.2                  14.5  

    Net Overhead Expense (Cash)                  (8.2)                 (9.6)                 (8.2)                (11.2) 

 Net Cash Provided (Used) Subtotal                    9.6                    4.9                  11.0                    3.4  

 Major Projects                  (0.2)                 (0.5)                 (0.2)                 (0.5) 

 Capital Expenditures                  (3.2)                 (7.1) 

 Balance Sheet Changes                    1.1                    0.4  

 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash                    7.3                    4.4                    4.1                    2.8  



  

 (3.0) 

 (2.0) 

 (1.0) 

 -    

 1.0  

 2.0  

 3.0  

 4.0  

 5.0  

 6.0  

 7.0  

 8.0  

Actual Budget PY Actual 

Year-Round Events Business Unit 
October 2015 YTD Contribution Margin 

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin 



  
Year-Round Events Business Unit

Contribution Margin Statement

Year to Date as of October, 2015
2015 2015 2014 2015

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year

Actual Budget Actual Budget

Rental of Facilities $2.6 $2.3 $2.6 $2.8

Personnel Services 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.8

Concessions 0.9 0.6 0.7 0.7

Equipment Rentals 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5

Admissions/Parking 1.6 1.2 1.3 1.3

Other Revenue 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

     Total Direct Revenue 6.6 5.4 6.1 6.2

Payroll/Related 1.6 1.7 1.5 2.0

Outside Services 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Facility/Related 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.4

Marketing/Related 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

Other Expense 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Direct Expense 2.3 2.4 2.0 2.8

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $4.3 $3.1 $4.1 $3.5



  

-15.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

Actual Budget PY Actual

Self-Produced Events Business Unit
October 2015 YTD Contribution Margin

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin



  
Self-Produced Events Business Unit

Contribution Margin Statement

Year to Date as of October, 2015
2015 2015 2014 2015

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year

Actual Budget Actual Budget

Admissions $7.8 $7.7 $8.3 $7.7

Concessions 6.5 6.0 6.5 6.0

Carnival 3.6 3.1 3.5 3.1

Sponsorships 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.6

Commercial Space 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.4

Parking 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.1

Other Revenue 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.0

     Total Direct Revenue 24.5 22.9 24.9 22.9

Payroll/Related 4.3 4.1 3.8 4.3

Outside Services 1.9 2.1 1.4 2.1

Marketing/Related 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.2

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 2.6 2.5 2.2 2.6

Attractions 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1

Other Expense 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.6

Total Direct Expense 12.8 12.7 11.5 12.9

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $11.7 $10.2 $13.4 $10.0



-6.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

Actual Budget PY Actual

Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit
October 2015 YTD Contribution Margin

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin



  

Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit

Contribution Margin Statement

Year to Date as of October, 2015
2015 2015 2014 2015

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year

Actual Budget Actual Budget

Ticket Sales $4.7 $4.1 $4.0 $4.1

Facility Fee 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8

Concessions 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4

Parking 0.6 0.4 0.5 0.4

Sponsorship 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

Other Revenue 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.3

     Total Direct Revenue 6.6 6.0 5.9 6.0

Performers' Fees 3.2 3.1 2.6 3.1

Outside Services 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

Marketing/Related 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5

Payroll/Related 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3

Other Expense 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

Total Direct Expense 4.8 4.7 4.2 4.9

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $1.7 $1.3 $1.7 $1.1



  

(10.0)

(8.0)

(6.0)

(4.0)

(2.0)

-

2.0 

Actual Budget PY Actual

Support Services/Outreach
October 2015 YTD Net Overhead

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Net Overhead



  
Support Services/Outreach Business Unit

Net Overhead Summary

Year to Date as of October, 2015
2015 2015 2014 2015

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year

Actual Budget Actual Budget

Interest $0.0 $0.1 $0.1 $0.1

Facility Rentals $0.1 $0.1 $0.1 $0.1

Other Revenue $0.2 $0.1 $0.2 $0.1

     Total Revenue $0.4 $0.2 $0.3 $0.3

Payroll/Related $5.3 $6.3 $4.9 $7.5

Facility/Related $1.6 $1.7 $1.7 $1.9

Supplies/Telephone/Postage $0.6 $0.5 $0.6 $0.6

Outside Services $0.3 $0.4 $0.6 $0.4

Insurance $0.3 $0.3 $0.3 $0.3

Other Expense $0.2 $0.2 $0.2 $0.2

Total Expense $8.4 $9.3 $8.3 $10.9

Net Overhead ($8.0) ($9.1) ($8.0) ($10.6)

Major Projects $0.2 $0.5 $0.2 $0.5

Non-Cash Expenses:

Depreciation Expense $2.0 $2.0 $2.5 $2.4

   Total Non-Cash Expense $2.0 $2.0 $2.5 $2.4



32nd D A A - OC Fair & Event Center
Balance Sheet (Unaudited)
October, 2015

2015 2014
Assets
Cash 2,317,454$    989,274$        
Investments 33,996,028   30,840,032    
Accounts Receivable 461,376        426,004         
Reserve for Bad Debt (11,850)         (29,614)          
Prepaid Assets -                -                 
Notes Receivable 277,786        -                 
Current Assets 37,040,794   32,225,696    

Deferred Expenses 81,715          69,584           
Capital Projects in Process 15,414,957   12,106,896    
Land 133,553        133,553         
Buildings and Improvements 31,129,380   32,963,400    
Equipment 303,181        76,819           
Long Term Assets 47,062,786   45,350,252    

Total Assets 84,103,580$  77,575,948$   

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,499,331$    1,305,026$     
Deferred Revenue 399,081        363,554         
Other Payroll Deductions 344,240        206,665         
Deposits 55,001          30,250           
Other Liabilities 440               -                 
Short Term Liabilities 2,298,094     1,905,495      

Compensated Absence Liability 962,269        1,007,530      
Long Term Debt -                -                 
Long Term Liabilities 962,269        1,007,530      

Total Liabilities 3,260,363     2,913,025      

Resources
Investment in Capital Assets 46,981,072$  45,280,668$   
Net Resources - Designated Use 859,341        866,460         
Restricted Capital -                -                 
Net Resources Available for Operations 25,405,749   19,942,469    
Net Resources  - Auction Fund 20,981          26,459           

73,267,142   66,116,056    
Net Proceeds from Operations 7,576,075     8,546,867      
Total Resources 80,843,217   74,662,923    

Total Liabilities and Net Resources 84,103,580$  77,575,948$   



32nd D A A - OC Fair & Event Center
Income Statement (Unaudited)
Year to Date as of October, 2015

2015 Budget 2014 Full
Year to Date Year to Date Budget Budget Year to Date Year over Year Year over Year 2015

Amount Amount  $ Variance % Variance Amount $ Variance % Variance Budget

Revenues
Admissions to Grounds 9,661,056$        9,149,000$      512,056$         5.6% 10,020,329$    (359,273)$        -3.6% 9,149,000$      
Commercial Space Rental Revenue 1,498,395          1,444,000        54,395             3.8% 1,460,983        37,412             2.6% 1,444,000        
Carnival and Concessions Revenue 10,500,327        9,434,000        1,066,327        11.3% 10,431,431      68,897             0.7% 9,434,000        
Exhibits Revenue 116,356             91,000             25,356             27.9% 101,499           14,857             14.6% 91,000             
Attractions Revenue 4,041,269          3,886,300        154,969           4.0% 3,394,305        646,963           19.1% 3,886,300        
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,210,308          4,774,000        436,308           9.1% 5,264,770        (54,462)            -1.0% 4,774,000        
Total OCFEC-Produced Event Revenue 31,027,711       28,778,300    2,249,411      7.8% 30,673,317      354,395         1.2% 28,778,300    

Facility Rental Revenue 2,628,029          2,283,968        344,061           15.1% 2,599,320        28,709             1.1% 2,771,534        
Other Event Revenue 4,029,415          3,126,600        902,815           28.9% 3,421,093        608,322           17.8% 3,432,700        
Equestrian Center Revenue 98,369               85,720             12,649             14.8% 86,731             11,638             13.4% 100,000           
Horse Show Revenue -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Other Operating Revenue 122,539             96,415             26,124             27.1% 108,821           13,718             12.6% 109,415           
Total Rental Revenue 6,878,352         5,592,703      1,285,649      23.0% 6,215,966        662,387         10.7% 6,413,649      

Interest Earnings 49,493               53,000             (3,507)              -6.6% 53,155             (3,662)              -6.9% 63,000             
Grants 15,021               -                   15,021             N/A 79,530             (64,509)            -81.1% -                   
Revenue from Sale of Assets -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Other Non-Operating Revenue 112,878             112,500           378                  0.3% 112,500           378                  0.3% 112,500           
Prior Year Revenue 333                    -                   333                  N/A -                   333                  N/A -                   
Total Non-Operating Revenue 177,725            165,500         12,225           7.4% 245,185          (67,460)          -27.5% 175,500         

Total Revenue 38,083,788$     34,536,503$   3,547,285$     10.3% 37,134,467$    949,321$        2.6% 35,367,449$   

Expenses
Payroll and Related Expense 11,266,864$      12,186,962$    920,098$         7.5% 10,341,836$    (925,028)$        -8.9% 14,008,769$    
Professional Services Expense 2,934,190          3,111,998        177,808           5.7% 2,654,699        (279,491)          -10.5% 3,246,653        
Directors Expense 12,058               9,900               (2,158)              -21.8% 5,982               (6,076)              -101.6% 11,600             
Insurance Expense 310,185             297,850           (12,335)            -4.1% 286,771           (23,414)            -8.2% 297,850           
Telephone & Postage Expense 130,770             105,440           (25,330)            -24.0% 97,142             (33,628)            -34.6% 129,866           
Supplies and Equipment Expense 3,767,021          3,571,644        (195,377)          -5.5% 3,277,594        (489,428)          -14.9% 3,632,573        
Facility and Related Expense 3,124,417          3,052,010        (72,407)            -2.4% 2,963,734        (160,683)          -5.4% 3,352,915        
Publicity & Related Expense 1,634,745          1,623,255        (11,490)            -0.7% 1,646,282        11,537             0.7% 1,664,665        
Attractions Expense 4,216,163          4,238,584        22,421             0.5% 3,779,020        (437,142)          -11.6% 4,238,584        
Other Self-Prod Event Expense 276,350             251,583           (24,767)            -9.8% 253,471           (22,880)            -9.0% 256,083           
Premium Expense 109,971             119,445           9,474               7.9% 115,474           5,503               4.8% 121,245           
Other Operating Expense 479,117             496,725           17,608             3.5% 415,617           (63,500)            -15.3% 515,410           
Total Operating Expense 28,261,851       29,065,396    803,545         2.8% 25,837,621      (2,424,230)     -9.4% 31,476,213    

Depreciation Expense 1,990,942          1,990,942        -                   0.0% 2,481,006        490,064           19.8% 2,389,130        
Major Projects 227,743             528,000           300,257           56.9% 222,902           (4,842)              -2.2% 528,000           
Carnival Funded Expenditures -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Loss on Sale of Asset -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Debt Service -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Prior Year Expense 27,178               -                   (27,178)            N/A 46,072             18,894             N/A -                   
Total Non-Operating Expense 2,245,862         2,518,942      273,079         10.8% 2,749,979        504,117         18.3% 2,917,130      

Total Expense 30,507,714$     31,584,338$   1,076,624$     13.6% 28,587,600$    (1,920,113)$    8.9% 34,393,343$   

Net Proceeds 7,576,075$       2,952,165$     4,623,910$     156.6% 8,546,867$      (970,792)$       -11.4% 974,106$        

11/16/2015  7:47 AM



32nd DAA - OC Fair & Event Center

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: YTD 2015

Net Proceeds $7,576,075

Non-Cash Expenses:
   Depreciation Expense 1,990,942

Balance Sheet Activity:
   (Incr) Decr in Accounts Receivable 148,754
   (Incr) Decr in Notes Receivable (277,786)
   (Incr) Decr in Other Assets (62,916)
   Incr (Decr) in Accounts Payable 1,129,563
   Incr (Decr) in Other Accrued Liabilities 169,884
      Subtotal 1,107,499

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by
         Operating Activities 10,674,516

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

   (Incr) Decr in Buildings & Improvements 0
   (Incr) Decr in Equipment 0

   (Incr) Decr in Construction in Progress (3,180,365)

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by
         Investing Activities (3,180,365)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $7,494,151

   Cash at Beginning of Year 28,819,331

Cash at End of Period $36,313,482

Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
Year to Date - October 2015



2015
Remaining

1,869,983
(95,082)
32,682
(9,356)
6,609

25,000
49,245

210,000
4,029

928
180,000

3,288
150,000
350,000
100,000
100,000
50,000
20,000
39,250

1,498,254
19,499
18,000

987,997
(16,309)
80,000
(7,599)
(3,266)
3,873

(4,181)
5,662,845

90,000
50,000

223,380
220,000
139,181
(12,932)
709,629

18,000
(42,798)
(13,418)

1,926
60,000
(5,995)
80,000
1,445

99,161

6,471,635

(3,113)
(2,900)

180,000
20,900

(10,880)
(9,707)
6,382

(3,422)
20,000
(8,974)
4,112
4,162

15,000
1,188
1,422

84,000
1,417

40,000
(11,224)
(18,776)
(9,331)

300,257

6,771,892

Exterior Rest Room Countertop Replacement

Lot G: Asphalt Repair/Replace/Slurry/Stripe

Portable Generator - Emergency Backup

Landscape: Perimeter Irrigation System

Total Major Projects 528,000 227,743

Total Capital Expenditures & Major Projects 10,180,000 3,408,108

Maint: (10) 3 yrd Dumpsters 0 18,776
Ergonomic Desk Chairs 0 9,331

Utility Cart Bodies 40,000 0
Ticket Booths: Blinds 0 11,224

S&S: Digital Hand Radios 84,000 0
S&S: Parking Lot K-Rails 80,000 78,583

Picnic Tables: ADA Compliant 18,000 16,812
Plastic Barricades 12,000 10,578

Pac Amp: Trash Cans - Plaza Area 12,000 7,838
Parking Shelter Study 15,000 0

Maint Office: Flooring 0 8,974
Pac Amp: Step Lights Repair/Replace 25,000 20,888

Park Plaza Rest Room Repairs 0 3,422
IT: Web Design 20,000 0

Box Office: Flooring 0 9,707
Pit Barricades - Crowd Control 12,000 5,618

Baja Blues: Paint Exterior 30,000 9,100
Bldg 10: Concrete Polishing 0 10,880

0 2,900
ASA: Painting 180,000 0

Total Capital Expenditures 9,652,000 3,180,365

Major Projects
Organizational Needs Assessment 0 3,113

S&S: Cart 9,000 7,555
Total Equipment 251,000 151,839

Jetter Trailer - Steam Cleaning 27,000 32,995
S&S: Parking Lot Lighting Controls 80,000 0

Parking: Utility Truck 30,000 28,074
60,000 0

Event Ops: Cart 7,000 49,798
Exhibit Equipment 20,000 33,418

Total Carnival Improvements 780,000 70,371

Equipment
Compressor: Towable/Portable 18,000 0

Interior Ground Seal 170,000 30,819
Carnival Water Line 0 12,932

250,000 26,620
Lot I/A: Tree Line Improvement 220,000 0

Carnival Improvements
Family Fairway: Artificial Turf 90,000 0
Light Tower 50,000 0

Solar Cart Parking - Charging Station 25,000 29,181
Total Buildings and Improvements 8,621,000 2,958,155

Arlington Rest Room Trailer Removal 10,000 13,266
22,000 18,127

Parking: Signage 80,000 0
EQC: Wash Rack Canopy 30,000 37,599

Veterans Exhibit 1,000,000 12,003
ASA: Entry Sign Replacement 0 16,309

Ranch Bldg: Remodel 88,000 68,501
Ranch Bldg: Water Clarifier 18,000 0

Pac Amp: Fall Protection System 45,000 5,750
Pac Amp: Seat Replacement 1,500,000 1,746

Maint: Womens Rest Room Remodel 50,000 0
Maint Yard: Enviro Valves 20,000 0

Lot C: Slurry & Stripe 100,000 0
Lot D: Seal & Stripe 100,000 0

Gate 2: Drive Lane Asphalt 150,000 0
Lot B: Slurry & Stripe 350,000 0

Century Barn Replacement 180,000 0
EQC: Replace Horseshoer Roof 20,000 16,712

Bldg 15: Floor Replacement 18,000 13,971
Campground: Electrical Infrastructure 9,000 8,072

ASA: Asphalt Repair & Replace 60,000 10,755
ASA: Re-Roof & Structure Repair 210,000 0

Parking: Signage 0 (6,609)
Arena: Rest Room Trailer Remodel 25,000 0

AG Memorial 111,000 78,318
Livestock Lane: Elec Upgrade 0 9,356

Buildings and Improvements
Pac Amp Renovation 4,400,000 2,530,017
West End Facility Electrical 0 95,082

32nd DAA - OC Fair & Event Center
Capital Expenditures & Major Projects Spending (Unaudited)

October, 2015
2015 2015

Description Budget Spent



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

78105 10/08/15 Association of State CA Supervisors 108.00                   
78106 10/08/15 Alejandro Pijuan 150.00                   
78107 10/08/15 AT&T 40.65                    
78108 10/08/15 B & L Productions 521.64                   
78109 10/08/15 Bob Slane 50.00                    
78110 10/08/15 California Fairs Financing Authority 395.00                   
78111 10/08/15 California Fair Services Authority 1,669.74               
78112 10/08/15 Charles Brown 150.00                   
78113 10/08/15 Moor+South/Pier Mngmt Co., LP (Tandem) 43,263.85             
78114 10/08/15 Cruisin For A Cure 41,439.99             
78115 10/08/15 Tsutsumida Pictures 216.00                   
78116 10/08/15 Void ‐                        
78117 10/08/15 DeltaCare USA 675.35                   
78118 10/08/15 Delta Dental Plan Of California 4,428.76               
78119 10/08/15 Department Of Human Resources 76.50                    
78120 10/08/15 Incognitus LLC 4,603.50               
78121 10/08/15 IUOE, Craft/Maint. Division 1,404.00               
78122 10/08/15 Kaiser Permanente 38,868.60             
78123 10/08/15 Keith Davis 200.00                   
78124 10/08/15 Ken Cowell 150.00                   
78125 10/08/15 Kimco Staffing Services,Inc.  1,216.00               
78126 10/08/15 LAC Events 4,533.75               
78127 10/08/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               
78128 10/08/15 Michael Murphy 200.00                   
78129 10/08/15 Orange County Treasurer‐Tax Collector 506,473.47           
78130 10/08/15 Pacific Carpet and Tile Cleaning  723.20                   
78131 10/08/15 Paper Depot 90.00                    
78132 10/08/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 45,341.29             
78133 10/08/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 1,312.23               
78134 10/08/15 Precision Engineering Surveyors, Inc. 5,620.00               
78135 10/08/15 Securitas Security Services USA, Inc. 47,794.11             
78136 10/08/15 SEIU Local 1000 CA State Employees Asso. 1,873.62               
78137 10/08/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 8,860.00               
78138 10/08/15 Silverado Stages, Inc. 114,187.50           
78139 10/08/15 Spectra  582.12                   
78140 10/08/15 Tracy's Mobile Repair 142.50                   
78141 10/08/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 608.37                   
78142 10/08/15 Wayne Montz 200.00                   
78143 10/08/15 Dawn R. Lantz 150.00                   
78144 10/09/15 Sand Sports Super Show 159,322.31           
78145 10/21/15 CWF, Inc. dba A1 Event & Party Rental 43,935.50             
78146 10/21/15 AT&T 75.42                    
78147 10/21/15 AT&T 1,609.90               
78148 10/21/15 AT&T 80.00                    
78149 10/21/15 Boyd & Associates, Inc. 1,456.50               

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

October 2015

Page 1 of 6



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

October 2015

78150 10/21/15 BurrellesLuce 189.28                   
78151 10/21/15 Cart Mart, Inc. 2,700.86               
78152 10/21/15 California Fair Services Authority 30,305.61             
78153 10/21/15 Costa Mesa Chamber Of Commerce 37.50                    
78154 10/21/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 8,231.09               
78155 10/21/15 Moor+South/Pier Mngmt Co., LP (Tandem) 28,036.25             
78156 10/21/15 CR&R Inc. 8,930.95               
78157 10/21/15 CR&A Custom, Inc. 89.78                    
78158 10/21/15 Darrell Komick 675.78                   
78159 10/21/15 Department of Forestry & Fire Protection 1,543.02               
78160 10/21/15 Fire Sprinkler Inspections, Inc. 1,450.00               
78161 10/21/15 The Fly Guy 782.20                   
78162 10/21/15 Haitbrink Asphalt Paving, Inc. 8,000.00               
78163 10/21/15 Void ‐                        
78164 10/21/15 Jerry Liu & Associates 1,025.00               
78165 10/21/15 Kathy Kramer 51.54                    
78166 10/21/15 Kennah Construction, Inc. 845.00                   
78167 10/21/15 Khavarian Enterprises, Inc.  31,876.00             
78168 10/21/15 Kimco Staffing Services,Inc.  1,641.60               
78169 10/21/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               
78170 10/21/15 Melody Avena 97.54                    
78171 10/21/15 Mobile Mini 121.50                   
78172 10/21/15 Modular Space Corporation / Modspace 1,165.85               
78173 10/21/15 Gravity Technologies Inc. 349.00                   
78174 10/21/15 Orange County Treasurer‐Tax Collector 7,820.07               
78175 10/21/15 Pacific Clippings 59.00                    
78176 10/21/15 Peter James Riojas 1,009.95               
78177 10/21/15 Pinnacle Landscape Company 4,457.00               
78178 10/21/15 Pre‐Fab Builders, Inc. 1,500.00               
78179 10/21/15 Quinn Company  104,197.73           
78180 10/21/15 Red Wing Hatchery 188.60                   
78181 10/21/15 Research Design Specialists 836.00                   
78182 10/21/15 Safeguard Health Plans 37.62                    
78183 10/21/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 6,602.12               
78184 10/21/15 Silverado Stages, Inc. 133,259.50           
78185 10/21/15 Southern California Edison 28,115.22             
78186 10/21/15 Southwest Mobile Storage, Inc. 1,162.59               
78187 10/21/15 Spectra  299.73                   
78188 10/21/15 State Disbursement Unit 331.00                   
78189 10/21/15 Sugar Plum Festivals 1,815.50               
78190 10/21/15 The Gas Company 485.94                   
78191 10/21/15 Ultimate Trade Shows & Events, Inc. 590.00                   
78192 10/21/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 819.50                   
78193 10/21/15 Verizon Wireless 1,647.91               
78194 10/22/15 Ray Cammack Shows, Inc. 22,367.20             

Page 2 of 6



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

October 2015

78195 10/22/15 AMFM Broadcasting Inc DBA iHeartMedia 50,762.06             
78196 10/28/15 Advanced Surfaces, Inc. 7,606.00               
78197 10/28/15 Amlon Industries, Inc. 1,611.79               
78198 10/28/15 AT&T 2,861.42               
78199 10/28/15 California Technology Agency 646.00                   
78200 10/28/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 7,168.60               
78201 10/28/15 CORT Business Services, Inc. 1,014.96               
78202 10/28/15 CR&A Custom, Inc. 12,948.01             
78203 10/28/15 Tsutsumida Pictures 216.00                   
78204 10/28/15 Department of General Services 179.89                   
78205 10/28/15 Department of Justice 6,545.00               
78206 10/28/15 Fire Sprinkler Inspections, Inc. 950.00                   
78207 10/28/15 Gem Faire, Inc. 739.88                   
78208 10/28/15 Christine Gunst 26.99                    
78209 10/28/15 Hahn & Bowersock 768.34                   
78210 10/28/15 IIDA Southern California Chapter 1,315.88               
78211 10/28/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 675.00                   
78212 10/28/15 Mesa Water District 13,307.00             
78213 10/28/15 Orange County Register ‐ Advertising 105.00                   
78214 10/28/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 1,355.09               
78215 10/28/15 Platinum Resource Group 936.00                   
78216 10/28/15 Ricoh Americas Corporation 3,093.35               
78217 10/28/15 Robin Wachner 72.30                    
78218 10/28/15 Sectran Security, Inc. 100.00                   
78219 10/28/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 12,342.50             
78220 10/28/15 Southern California Edison 207,674.44           
78221 10/28/15 Southern California Marine Association 914.00                   
78222 10/28/15 Sound Media Fusion, LLC 8,250.00               
78223 10/28/15 State Disbursement Unit 331.00                   
78224 10/28/15 Suck‐It Up 332.64                   
78225 10/28/15 The Wellness Group, LLC 690.00                   

1,890,079.54Total October 2015 AP Checks

Page 3 of 6



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

E118452078 10/01/15 E4C Enterprises, LLC (Brew Hee Haw) 52,938.20             
E0f54c71a92 10/01/15 Internal Revenue Service 450.00                   
E100215‐1 10/02/15 Signapay Accounting ‐ 0964 1,339.44               
E100215‐2 10/02/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 362.24                   
E100215‐3 10/02/15 Global Payments ESS ‐ 4284 89.66                    
E100215‐4 10/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ WiFi 32.05                    
E100215‐5 10/02/15 Global Payments WiFi ‐ 3304 31.76                    
E100215‐6 10/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ ESS 31.65                    
E100215‐7 10/02/15 Global Payments Visual Arts ‐ 3277 20.95                    
E100215‐8 10/02/15 Signapay PacAmp Merch ‐ 5003 13.55                    
E100215‐9 10/02/15 Signapay PacAmp Sales ‐ 1608 12.95                    
E100215‐10 10/02/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 12.26                    
E100215‐11 10/02/15 Signapay JLA ‐ 6845 10.00                    
E100515‐1 10/05/15 AMEX TM ‐ 5809 215.78                   
E100515‐2 10/05/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 50.00                    
E100515‐3 10/05/15 AMEX ESS APP ‐ 1581 14.02                    
E100515‐4 10/05/15 CBB Exhibit Entries ‐ 8888 13.56                    
E100515‐5 10/05/15 AMEX WiFi ‐ 3435 1.12                      
EP100515‐1 10/05/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 55,288.57             
EP100515‐2 10/05/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 6,869.92               
ER3371443137 10/05/15 PayPal 59.95                    
E100615 10/06/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 13.77                    
E14551705 10/06/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 18,892.41             
E14551705 10/06/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 10,782.28             
E14551705 10/06/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 1,018.86               
E100715 10/07/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 325.00                   
EP100715‐1 10/07/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 4,897.06               
EP100715‐2 10/07/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 199.76                   
E100915 10/09/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 31.00                    
E101315 10/13/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 17.06                    
EP101315‐1 10/13/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 63.75                    
EP101315‐2 10/13/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 1.30                      
E101415 10/14/15 Global Payments ESS ‐ 4284 50.00                    
E101515 10/15/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 36.00                    
E101615 10/16/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 206.00                   
E101915‐1 10/19/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 60.00                    
E101915‐2 10/19/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 15.53                    
EP101915‐1 10/19/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 58,805.20             
EP101915‐2 10/19/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 7,907.78               
E102115 10/21/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 20.00                    
EP102215 10/22/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 59.33                    
E102315‐1 10/23/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 20.00                    
E102315‐2 10/23/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 12.00                    
E102315‐3 10/23/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 10.86                    
E14551705 10/23/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 1,259.03               

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

October 2015

Page 4 of 6



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

October 2015

EP102615 10/26/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 6.86                      
E14551705 10/27/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 134,993.63           
EP102815 10/28/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 1,049.44               
E103015 10/30/15 PacAmp Chargebacks 125.00                   

Total October 2015 Electronic Payments 358,736.54           

Page 5 of 6



 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

 
    
 

OC Fair & Event Center December 2015 Events Calendar Features  
Fight Club OC, Garden Class & Winter Fest 

 
Costa Mesa, Calif. (December 2015) – The OC Fair & Event Center is home to a variety of events 
throughout the year. Here is the current December 2015 events calendar: 
 
December 2015 at the OC Fair & Event Center 

Open 
through 
Dec. 16 

Magic Trees Christmas Tree Lot  
Find your holiday centerpiece at this large display of Noble Fir and Douglas Fir Christmas 
trees for sale. Flocking and wreaths are also available. 
Hours: Daily 9 a.m.-9 p.m. 
Admission: Free admission & parking. Prices for trees, wreaths and additional services vary.
Information: magictrees.ocfair [at] gmail [dot] com, (818) 730-9074, 
Facebook.com/MagicTreesOC 

  
3 Fight Club OC 

An innovative, bi-monthly series featuring boxing and mixed martial arts competitive fights 
with ringside luxury suites, VIP perks for season ticket holders and a happy hour bar and grill 
for all attendees. Join us Friday, December 11 for a special edition of Fight Club OC, details 
available at fightclub.com. 
Hours: Thursday 7:30-9:30 p.m. Join us for Happy Hour specials 5:30-6:30 p.m. 
Admission: $50-$100 
Information: fightcluboc.com, (949) 760-3131 

  
4-5 Shoreline Dog Fanciers Association Holiday Classic  

All-breed dog show and obedience/rally event. 
Hours: Friday-Saturday 8 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: Free 
Information: shorelinedfa.intuitwebsites.com, espreepdls [at] aol [dot] com, 
949-380-0885 

  
5  Centennial Farm Garden Class – “Make It & Take It Wreaths” 

Learn to make a fresh winter wreath from live greens. All tools and materials will be provided. 
Garden Classes are open to gardeners 16 years or older. Class sizes are limited so pre-
registering online is strongly encouraged. 
Hours: Saturday 9:30 a.m. (Classes last 1.5-2 hours unless otherwise specified.) 
Admission: $20 (Reservation deadline: Thurs., Dec. 3) 
Information: ocfair.com/gardenclasses, CFGardenClass@ocfair.com, 
(714) 708-1619 

  



 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

5-6 Sugar Rush 
Sugar Rush is a one-of-a kind dessert showcase and sweet market experience that offers a 
“Big Bite” of entertainment, competitions, demonstrations, cookie decorating for children, 
walk-about tasting of decadent and delicious sweet treats and shopping from dozens of the 
best pastry chefs and confectioners in Southern California. 
Hours: Saturday-Sunday Noon-5 p.m. 
Admission: General $20 Presale, $30 Day of Event, VIP $50 Presale, $60 Day of Event 
(Limited availability. 21 & older. Early entrance at 11 a.m.), Child (5-12) $10 Presale, $15 Day 
of Event, Children 4 & younger are free 
Information: sugarrushoc.com, info [at] bigbiteevents [dot] com, (714) 550-9700 

  
6-7 Malibu Kennel Club  

Two-day all-breed dog show and obedience/rally event. 
Hours: Sunday-Monday 8 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: Free 
Information: onofrio.com, (310) 470-0662, danapearl [at] earthlink [dot] net 

  
11-13 Gem Faire 

Shop for fine jewelry, gems, beads, minerals, crystals, findings and more at manufacturer's 
prices. Plus, find nearly 200 exhibitors from around the world, classes, demonstrations, 
jewelry repair, ring sizing and free hourly door prizes. 
Hours: Friday Noon-6 p.m., Saturday 10 a.m.-6 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: General $7 weekend pass, Children 11 & younger are free 
Information: gemfaire.com, info [at] gemfaire [dot] com, (503) 252-8300 

  
17 Share Our Selves 46th Annual Adopt A Family Program 

Share Our Selves’ annual holiday donation program, Adopt A Family, pairs generous donors 
with struggling families with children in the Costa Mesa & Santa Ana public school districts to 
provide them a holiday dinner plus new gifts for the children. Pre-registered donations are 
collected Dec. 17 at the OC Fair & Event Center and information on contributing is available 
online at ShareOurSelves.org. 
Donation Drop-Off Hours: Thursday, 6 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission & Parking: Free 
Information: shareourselves.org, aaf [at] shareourselves [dot] org 

  
Dec. 18-
Jan. 3 

Winter Fest  
Enjoy winter in the OC with ice skating, holiday film viewings, ice tubing, nightly snowfall, 
Christmas tree lighting celebration and more festive entertainment and family-friendly 
activities. 
Hours: Sunday-Thursday* 11 a.m.-10 p.m., Friday**-Sunday 11 a.m.-11 p.m. 
(*Thursday, Christmas Eve 11 a.m.-5 p.m. & **Friday, Christmas Day 2-11 p.m.) 
Admission: (Single-Day) General/Adult (Mon-Fri) $20 online, $25 day-of | (Sat-Sun) $25 
online, $30 day-of, Child (4-11) (Mon-Fri) $10 online, $15 day-of | (Sat-Sun) $15 online, $15 
day-of. (17-Day Pass) General/Adult $45 online, $50 day-of, Child (4-11) $25 online, $30 day-
of. Children 3 & younger are free 
Information: WinterFestOC.com, info [at] WinterFestOC [dot] com, (714) 550-9700 

  
 This is a family-friendly event. Click on the icon for a full list of upcoming events for children and 

families. 
 
December 2015 Weekly Events 

 
Centennial Farm  
Three-acre working farm designed to educate youth and their families about agriculture and its 
importance to daily life with fruit and vegetable gardens, livestock and the Millennium Barn. 



 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

Hours (Dec. 1-13): Monday-Friday 1-4 p.m., Saturday-Sunday 9 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Hours (Dec. 14-31): Daily 9 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Closed Dec. 24-27 
Admission: Free (During all-grounds events, admission may be required. Check ocfair.com for 
more information.) 
Information: OC Fair & Event Center, ocfair.com or (714) 708-1916 

 
Food Truck Fare – Wednesday (After Dark) & Thursday (Lunch)  
Enjoy a gourmet food truck meal twice a week at the OC Fair & Event Center. Wednesday features 
tasty dinner options with entertainment and a cash bar while Thursday features lunchtime options 
from a variety of food trucks. Held near the Pacific Amphitheatre Box Office, enter at Gate 1 off Fair 
Drive. 
Hours: Wednesday 5:30-9 p.m., Thursday 11 a.m.-2 p.m. 
Closed Dec. 23, 24, 30 & 31 
Admission and Parking: Free (Food prices vary per truck) 
Information & Weekly Offerings: ocfair.com, Twitter.com/ocfair, Facebook.com/ocfair 
 
Farmers Market  
Find the freshest fruit, vegetables, nuts and more at this weekly California-certified market. 
Hours: Thursday 9 a.m.-1 p.m. 
Closed Dec. 24 & 31 
Admission and Parking: Free 
Information: Orange County Farm Bureau, orange.cfbf.com or (714) 573-0374 
 
OC Market Place / Cars & Coffee  
A unique weekend swap meet celebrating food, fun, value and the entrepreneurial spirit. 
Hours: Saturday and Sunday 7 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: General $2 (Children 11 and younger are free) Parking: Free 
Information: Tel Phil Enterprises, ocmarketplace.com or (949) 723-6660 

 
 
Mark Your Calendar: January 2016 Events 
 

Dec. 18-Jan. 3 Winter Fest 
30 Centennial Farm Garden Class – Pruning Workshop 
2 BrideWorld Expo 
16-17 Crossroads of the West Gun Show 
23-24 SoCal World Guitar Show 
30-31 Great Train Expo 

 
For additional information on any show, please contact the promoter listed in the event’s information. 
General parking for most events is $7. Scheduled events are subject to change without notice. Visit ocfair.com for 
event updates. 
 
The OC Fair & Event Center is located off the 405 and 55 freeways at 88 Fair Drive in Costa Mesa. For 
more information, please visit ocfair.com, become a fan on Facebook.com/OCFair, follow us at 
Twitter.com/ocfair or call (714) 708-1500.  
 



CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

SA-145-15FT CORT Furniture rental for 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 06/09/15 - 08/31/15 $8,846.00

SA-260-15SP Haggen, Inc. Sponsorship Fair Time 07/01/15 - 08/16/15 $104,543.00

SA-170-15FT Southwest Mobile Storage Mobile unit rental Fair Time 06/16/15 - 08/31/15 $4,700.00

SA-201-15SP Straub Distributing Company, LTD O/B/O
Anheuser-Busch InBev

Sponsorship Fair Time 06/06/15-08/17/15  $262,726.00

SA-254-15FT United Site Services of Southern California, Inc. Rental fencing for 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 06/23/15 - 08/24/15 $19,000.00

SA-255-15FT United Site Services of Southern California, Inc. Rental portable toilets for 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/01/15 - 08/21/15 $8,500.00

SA-257-15FT United Rentals (North America), Inc. Light tower rental for 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/03/15 - 08/31/15 $9,250.00

SA-261-15SP Live Nation (Cirque) Sponsorship Fair Time 06/18/15 - 08/16/15 $1,800.00

SA-262-15SP Uber Sponsorship Fair Time 04/24/15 - 11/30/15
$5.00 for every rider 

acquired with code 
“OCFAIR” 

SA-265-15YR Schuller Ride Safety, LLC Carnival/Independent Amusement Ride Safety Inspection Services Year-Round 10/23/15 - 10/25/15 $2,500.00

SA-266-15CF Hart Bros. Livestock dba Hart Livestock Horse rentals Year-Round 01/21/16 - 02/12/15 $2,430.00

Amendments

CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM CHANGE IN 
RECEIPT AMOUNT

CHANGE IN NOT TO 
EXCEED EXPENSE 

SA-253-15SP
(Amend #1)

On Hold

SA-200-15SP Orange County Register Sponsorship Fair Time 4/1/2015 - 08/17/15 $28,098.00 (TRADE)

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

NOVEMBER 2015

Page 1 of 1







































































































































































































































































































RA # CONTRACTOR EVENT DESCRIPTION FACILITIES CONTRACT DATES CONTRACT AMOUNT

R‐055‐15 Southern California Indian Center, Inc. 47th Annual Indian POW WOW Cultural Festival 
Anaheim Building,
Los Alamitos Building,                                    
OC Promenade

11/20/15‐11/23/15 $29,276.50

R‐058‐15
International Interior Design Association 
Southern California Chapter

NeoConnect 2015 Trade Show Trade Show The Hangar 10/13/15 $9,927.50

R‐075‐15 Newport Mesa Unified School District NMUSD College and Career Night College Night  Costa Mesa Building 10/21/15 $11,977.75

R‐144‐15 GP Sandy Hyundai Ride & Drive Dealership Training Huntington Beach, 1/2 Lot I, LFestival Field 
Asphalt

10/04/15‐10/08/15 $41,176.50

R‐145‐15 Vagabondias Vagabondias ‐ Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/13/15‐11/15/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R‐146‐15 Trilogy RVers Trilogy RVers ‐ Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/11/15‐11/15/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R‐147‐15 Research Design Specialists RDS ‐ Automotive Market Research  Car Research  The Hangar 09/28/15‐10/03/15 $23,788.00

R‐148‐15 Travel Bees Travel Bees ‐ Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/20/15‐11/22/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R‐149‐15 Absolute Event Solutions Big Bite Sugar Rush Consumer Show The Hangar 12/04/15‐12/07/15 $17,841.00

R‐017‐16 Train Show Inc.  Great Train Show Train Expo Costa Mesa Building 01/29/16‐02/01/16 $18,153.00

R‐018‐16 The Expo Pros California Baby & Kidz Expo Children's Expo The Hangar 02/26/16‐02/28/16 $9,807.00

R‐023‐16 Kristen Cheever Mason‐Cheever Wedding Wedding Millennium Barn, Silo 05/07/16‐05/08/16 $5,328.00

FT‐065‐15 BrewWings LLC Food Truck Fare, Imaginology, Fair Food Truck Pacific Amphitheatre, Imaginology, Fair 01/01/15‐12/31/15 Varies $35.00 ‐ $400.00

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER
RENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

NOVEMBER 2015









































































JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY PROJECT # PROJECT DATE PROJECT DESCRIPTION PRIMARY CONTRACTOR
APPROVED 

PROJECT TOTAL

Continuing
California Fair Financing Authority C0732X.454 02/01/12 Main Mall Renovation Sanders Construction $3,402,000.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Const 01/10/12 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Phase I Construction Innovative Construction Solutions $2,022,634.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Arch 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Architecture MAKE Architecture $575,792.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Geo 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Geotechnical Willdan Geotechnical $21,001.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03213031/B, Const 08/15/13 Pac Amp Berm Renovation - Phase II CFFA $12,806,857.70 
California Fair Financing Authority 03215024 05/29/15 Pac Amp Seat Replacement - Solicitation of Bids CFFA $7,100.00 
New

Revision/Amendment

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

ACTIVE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY AGREEMENTS

As of October 31, 2015



 

 

Joint Powers Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

Invoices Paid in October 2015 

 



kkeife
Text Box
Check #: 78110Date Paid: 10/08/2015















kkeife
Text Box
Check #: 78134Date Paid: 10/08/2015





MINUTES OF OCFEC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
HELD OCTOBER 22, 2015 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER: 

Chair Aitken called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 
 
2. MISSION STATEMENT 
  
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by Vice Chair Mouet. Roll call taken 
by Jessica Zimmerman. 
 

4.  DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Tkaczyk, Director La Belle, 
Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Cervantes, and Director 
Ruiz 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT/EXCUSED: 
Director Nguyen 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO; Michele Richards, OCFEC VP Business 
Development Officer; Debbye McDaniel, OCFEC VP Operations & 
Administration; Jessica Zimmerman, OCFEC; Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC 
Director of Facilities; Jeff Willson, OCFEC; Deborah Fletcher, Office of the 
Attorney General; Janet Taylor, Stenographer; Ernesto Munoz, Costa 
Mesa Public Services Director; Lisa Sabo; Grant Anderson; Theresa 
Sears; Reggie Mundekis; Beth Refakes 
 

5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL UPDATE 
Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO, encouraged everyone to come by and see 
the Cirque production of Kurios. 
 
Kramer also stated that services of Joe A. Gonsalves & Sons have been 
secured; they are a professional legislate representative firm in 
Sacramento who will be working with OCFEC to get ABX422 repealed. 
 
Kramer stated that Gonsalves will identify a legislative author to get this 
introduced as legislation and than work with the Orange County 
delegation. 
 
Kramer also stated Tandem will be working with the Governor’s office to 
add this as a budget trailer; confident that will be completed in 2016. This 
is a short term contract for this project and developing an RFP to secure 
professional legislative representation service. 
 
Kramer discussed about post-fair community neighborhood meeting on 
Monday, October 19 and asked for feedback from two vantage points, one 
point as a neighbor and the other as a guest of the fair. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 9 

 

 

 

Kramer noted the overwhelming positive feedback OCFEC received 
around the new Neighborhood Ambassador program. There were many 
good comments about the cleanliness of the Fair, the programming, and 
several people commented that this was one of the best fairs and 
commended staff for all the hard work that took place. Overall, the 
neighbors are very appreciative of all of the efforts the organization is 
making to continue being good neighbors. 
 
Michele Richards, OCFEC Vice President, Business Development, 
discussed LFestival, a Latin American music and cultural festival debuting 
at OCFEC on Saturday, November 24 through Sunday, November 25.  
 
Richards mentioned that Kurios, the Cirque Du Soleil show, continues 
through November 29 and the Veterans + Labor Event will be held on 
November 11. Richards then provided a review of upcoming events at 
OCFEC. 
 
Director Berardino mentioned the controversy surrounding gun shows and 
asked whether or not there is an exemption that allows the sale of assault 
rifles.  
 
Richards stated she did not know and that she would do some research 
on that issue. 
 
Chair Aitken stated there are a lot of exemptions we can get around with 
waiting periods, background checks, etc. She requested a discussion of 
guns shows be agendized for next board meeting. 
 
Director Tkaczyk would like to know what the rules are regarding guns 
shows on the property.  
 
Debbye McDaniel, OCFEC Interim VP Business and Administration 
discussed OCFEC financial numbers. She stated OCFEC currently has 
nearly $38 million in the bank; $34 million which is in a LAIF account.  
 
McDaniel stated that in Q3 the organization made $32M on revenue, 
expenses were $19 and a half million, the net income of $12 and half 
million. That’s for July, August, and September 2015 alone. For the Fair 
alone, these are not concrete numbers - $30 million fair-related revenue, 
expenses 18 million, with a net income of 11 million; almost 2 million less 
than in 2014. 
 
McDaniel concluded year-to-date results as of September 30 – revenue is 
36 million, 28 million in expenses and 7 million in income year-to-date. 
We’re $3.2 million above our budgeted income, which is a 72% higher net 
income than we anticipated. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet discussed about the improvements in the accounting 
system that will help the budgeting role. 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 9 

 

 

 

 
Director Tkaczyk thanked Kathy Kramer and the staff on a great job on the 
accounting 
 
Kramer concluded that for this year is really about labor management and 
using analytic tools to understand as budgeting for 2016. She has made a 
commitment, along with McDaniel, to help staff during the budget process 
and sit in budget meetings; to manage things by variance reports and 
variance meetings and making a front piece of our culture and everyone 
having an understanding and growing from the bottom up. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Beth Refakes thanked Kathy Kramer and OCFEC staff for community 
meeting highlighting the need for the Neighborhood Ambassador program 
and continued sound monitoring.  
  

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held September 24, 2015 
  

ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
review and approve the minutes from the Board meeting held 
September 24, 2015. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice 
Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director 
Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Ruiz and Director 
Cervantes. NAYES: none.  

 
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

  
A.  Standard Agreements: SA-256-15FT; SA-263-15SM 
 
B.  Amendments : SA-258-13WC (Amend #1); SA-260-13CS (Amend #1); 

SA-166-15FT (Amend # 1) 
   
C. Interagency Agreements: none 

 
D. Letters of Understanding: none 
 
E. Rental Agreements: R-055-15; R-058-15; R-075-15; R-144-15; R-145-

15; R-146-15; R-147-15; R-148-15; R-149-15; R-023-16 
 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none 

 
G. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board 
discussion or to comments made before the Board are to be listed on 
the meeting agenda and included in the Board materials as an item of 
public disclosure.  



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 9 

 

 

 

 

i. none.  
 

ACTION: Director La Belle motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
review and approve the Consent Calendar. MOTION CARRIED. 
AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director 
Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Ruiz and 
Director Cervantes. NAYES: none.  

   
9.  GOVERNANCE PROCESS: 
 

A.  Committee/Task Force/Liaison Reports 
 
Vice Chair Mouet stated that the Centennial farm Foundation Board 
members asked me if he plans to continue being a member of the 
Foundation Board of Directors and he stated that that was his 
intention. He plans to help them be creative to try to raise more money 
to help the farm. 
 
Director Berardino discussed the Heroes Hall Foundation noting that 
they are still awaiting their 501 (c)(3) number from the IRS.  
 
Director La Belle stated that the next Heroes Hall Finance Committee 
meeting is scheduled for October 29. 
 

B.  Arlington Bioswale Update 
 
Lisa Sabo spoke in opposition to the Arlington Bioswale project as 
proposed, expressing concerns about safety and noise at the 
Equestrian Center. She suggested continuing with the bioswale but 
moving the trail to the opposite side of the street.  
 
Reggie Mundekis thanked the Board for their efforts working towards 
repealing ABX422. She then spoke in opposition to the Bioswale 
project as proposed.  She asked that OCFEC look into the safety 
issues building this trail, noting that when an accident happens, it’s 
going to be the Fair’s name in the paper.  
 
Kramer introduced Ernesto Munoz, the Public Service Director with the 
City of Costa Mesa to provide an overview of the project. 

 
Ernesto Munoz provided an overview of the Arlington Bioswale project 
stating that it is a unique opportunity for the fairgrounds to partner with the 
city to construct aesthetic improvements on the north side of the fairground 
property and at the same time implementing an ecologically sensitive 
solution to address the fairground water quality challenges.  
 
Munoz stated this project will also result in material savings to the 
fairground to implement and complete roadway, parkway, and storm drain 
improvements between the fairgrounds and the city. Munoz noted that 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 5 OF 9 

 

 

 

OCFEC is committed to approximately $2 million in improvements on 
Arlington Drive and by partnering with the City, OCFEC would be asked to 
contribute a $1 million flat fee.  
 
Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC Director of Facilities, stated the responsibilities for 
OCFEC include a storm drain pipe from approximately Gate 4 to Gate 9 as 
well as all the street repairs, curb and gutter, fire hydrants, and anything 
else related to street improvements per the city’s requirements. The storm 
drain improvements are estimated at $1,366,000 and roadway 
improvements estimated $662,857. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet noted that if the trail is separated from the Bioswale 
project, OCFEC is liable for the full cost of the improvements to the south 
side of Arlington.  
 
Grant Anderson, Traffic Engineer for Kabbara Engineering, discussed 
proposed improvements to driveways along Arlington as part of the 
proposed project.  
 
Director Berardino asked about the noise issue for the Equestrian Center 
and how will it be controlled. 
 
Munoz stated that the noise issue could be addressed through either a 
block wall or vegetation screen. He also mentioned that the city will work 
with OCFEC on this issue.  
 
Chair Aitken asked whether or not OCFEC’s participation in this project 
with the City would correct the current encroachment issues the 
fairgrounds faces. 
 
Munoz answered that yes, pending approval from Sacramento, the city is 
looking to grant a permanent easement.  
 
Director Berardino asked, with OCFEC’s contribution of $1 million to the 
project, would the organization have a say in the design.  
 
Munoz stated that the City plans on working with OCFEC staff to 
implement the design. 
 
Director Bagneris asked when this project will be completed due to having 
a schedule stating late 2015. 
 
Munoz stated that if the Board of Directors approves the project he 
anticipates break ground after the 2016 Fair.   
 
Director La Belle asked Munoz regarding the existing roadway width is 
what today and what will it be with the project as proposed? 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 6 OF 9 

 

 

 

Munoz introduced Leah Kabbara, Kabbara Engineering, to provide an 
answer to Director La Belle’s question. 
 
Kabbara stated the street transitions from a 40-foot width at Gate 6 to 
approximately 27 feet of pavement at the Equestrian Center.  
 
Vice Chair Mouet stated that the project is fiscally responsible and 
ecologically responsible, and as long as we are mindful of safety concerns, 
the project is a win-win situation for everyone.  
 
ACTION: Director Tkaczyk motioned and Director La Belle seconded 
Arlington Bio-Swale Update. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair 
Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director 
Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director 
Cervantes. NAYES: none. 
 

C.  Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA Regarding 
Completion of Heroes Hall Architectural Design and Construction 
Documents 

  
 Richards presented the staff report and recommendation to approve 

the Letter of Understanding with CFFA regarding completion of the 
Heroes Hall architectural design and construction documents. 
 
ACTION: Director Berardino motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA regarding completion of 
Heroes Hall Architectural Design and Construction MOTION 
CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, 
Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director 
Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: none. 

 
D.  Ratification of Updated OCFEC Smoking Policy 
  

Richards presented that staff report and recommendation which 
includes the following revised smoking policy:  
 
By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be 
permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of California building, 
including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, 
Centennial Farm, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena 
grandstand and bleacher seating areas. This policy includes the use of 
electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens. 
 
During OCFEC-produced events (i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking 
and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens is 
prohibited. 
 
Year-round event promoters may adopt more restrictive policies at 
their discretion, and with the prior approval of the Association. 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 7 OF 9 

 

 

 

 
ACTION: Director La Belle motioned and Director Cervantes seconded 
to approve Ratification of Updated OCFEC Smoking Policy MOTION 
CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, 
Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director 
Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: none. 
 

E.  Review and Approve the Appointment of the Board Chair to serve 
on behalf of the 32nd District Agricultural Association as an 
Elector for the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Board of 
Directors Elections 

  
 Kramer presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 

ACTION: Director Berardino motioned and Director Bagneris 
seconded to review and approve the Appointment of the Board Chair 
to serve on behalf of the 32nd District Agricultural Association as an 
Elector for the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Board of 
Directors Elections. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice 
Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, 
Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. 
NAYES: none. 

 
F.  The 32nd District Agricultural Association Board of Directors 

delegates authority to execute all forms of agreements, contracts, 
and purchase orders without further authorization from the Board 
of Directors (Policy 2.3.5). All such agreements, contracts and 
purchase orders are to be submitted to the Board of Directors for 
review at subsequent meetings. This delegation is subject to 
board review at each annual meeting 
 
Kramer presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
ACTION: Director Bagneris motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
review and approve the following delegation of authority: The 32nd 
District Agricultural Association Board of Directors delegates 
contractual authority to the CEO, Kathy Kramer, up to $50,000 for 
general contracts and $300,000 for talent guarantees. Michele 
Richards, Vice President Business Development, and Debbye 
McDaniel, Vice President Finance and Administration, may sign 
contractual instruments as delegated by the CEO within the limits of 
the aforementioned contractual authority. Additionally, the Board 
authorizes an exemption for staff to issue payment for billings 
in excess of $50,000 via the “Over $50,000 Expenditure Budget 
Schedule” which is submitted with each annual budget or an approved 
contract, LOU or rental agreement or is payment for utilities, Cal Card 
expenditures, insurance, payroll or State mandated employee services. 
MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, 
Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 8 OF 9 

 

 

 

Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: 
none. 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION  

 
Chair Aitken adjourned to Closed Session at 10:40 a.m. and the meeting 
resumed at 11:25 a.m.  
 
Chair Aitken stated there was nothing official to report but gave direction 
to counsel on pending litigation. 
 

11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 
 
Director La Belle thanked the staff for the Bioswale report. 
 
Director Bagneris thanked McDaniel for all her hard work. She also 
thanked Chair Aitken for all her hard work. 
 
Director Tkaczyk thanked Chair Aitken for all her hard work this year 
 
Vice Chair Mouet thanked Chair Aitken for all of her hard work throughout 
the whole year and enjoyed working with her. He also was looking forward 
to the LFesitval. 
 
Director Cervantes thanked Chair Aitken for all her hard work this year. 
 
Director Ruiz thanked Chair Aitken and welcomed Vice Chair Mouet to his 
new position as Board Chair. He then encouraged everyone to come to 
the Veterans and Labor event. 
 
Director Berardino thanked Chair Aitken all of her hard work. He then 
asked that the Board discussed minimum wage policies for seasonal 
employees at the next Board meeting.  
 
Deborah Fletcher advised that staff coordinate with CalHR regarding this 
discussion. 
 
Kramer noted that the Human Resources Department is currently 
conducting a salary survey and staff will bring back a report at the next 
Board meeting.  
 
Chair Aitken thanked the board and staff for all the efforts while she was 
Board Chair. 
  

12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2015 
 
 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCTOBER 22, 2015, PAGE 9 OF 9 

 

 

 

 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
 
 

 
______________________________________  
Ashleigh Aitken, Chair 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 19, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9A 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
 
DATE:   November 13, 2015 
  
FROM:    Gerardo Mouet, Board Chair  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Gerardo Mouet, Board Chair 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information item only.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for 
the purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a 
verbal update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not 
already on the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board 
meeting.  

 
i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Vice Chair Berardino, Director La Belle) 
iii. Organizational Needs Assessment Task Force (Director La Belle, Director Ruiz) 

 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: NOVEBMER 19, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9B 

 

 

SUBJECT: Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project 
 
DATE:   November 13, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathy Kramer, CEO 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, CEO 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. Authorize California Fairs Finance Authority (CFFA) to contract on behalf of OC 
Fair & Event Center with selected lowest qualified bidder for the Pacific 
Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project. 
 
2. Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA to provide project management 
services for the Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In response to the RFP for the Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project, 
California Fairs Finance Authority (CFFA) received two (2) bids. The bid opening 
was, October 22, 2015 in the OCFEC Administration Building. CFFA determined that 
American Seating Company is the lowest qualified bidder. 
 
OC Fair & Event Center uses construction management services provided by 
California Fairs Finance Authority (CFFA). 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: NOVEBMER 19, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9C 

 

 

SUBJECT: Review of Hourly Rate for Seasonal Fair-Time Positions 
 
DATE:   November 13, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathy Kramer, CEO 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, CEO 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

  
Information Item 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff was asked by Director Berardino to provide hourly pay rate information related 
to our seasonal Fair time employees. There was discussion from the Board as to 
how these rates are established and if CalHR is involved in setting rates for our non-
civil service work pool, and what role the District has related to setting these hourly 
pay rates.   
 
The State of California minimum wage will increase to $10.00 per hour beginning 
January 1, 2016.  In addition, as part of preparing for the 2016 budget, staff has 
completed a comprehensive industry pay rate analysis for our seasonal fair time 
positions.  In addition, staff has developed a tiered program to offer hourly pay 
increases based on years of Fair time service.   
 
A presentation of these findings will be presented at the November 19th Board 
Meeting.   
 
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 19, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9D 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Discussion Regarding Gun Shows at the OCFEC 
 
DATE:   November 13, 2015    
  
FROM:    Michele Richards, VP Business Development  
  
PRESENTATION BY:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

  
Discussion item 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
At the October 22, 2015 Board meeting, Director Berardino expressed interest in 
learning more about any exemptions gun shows have, particularly related to assault 
weapons. Chair Aitken requested that an item be added to the November agenda for the 
Board to discuss gun shows at the OC Fair & Event Center, and Director Tkaczyk asked 
staff to provide background and research on the subject. Following is information 
gathered by staff that will be presented at the meeting: 
 
Overview of Crossroads of the West Guns Shows at OCFEC 
 
Crossroads of the West is the promoter that has been holding gun shows at the OC Fair 
& Event Center for 29 years. Currently, the promoter hosts five shows per year 
(January, March, June, August, and November) with an average attendance of over 
13,000 at each show. 
 
Revenue generated from the five shows in 2015 is projected to be $627,000, which 
represents approximately 10% of OCFEC’s total revenue from year-round events. The 
Crossroads of the West gun shows utilize the following buildings/areas of the OC Fair & 
Event Center: 
 

 Costa Mesa Building 
 Santa Ana Pavilion 
 Huntington Beach Building 
 Los Alamitos Building 

 OC Promenade 
 Anaheim Building 
 Main Mall 

  
 



Crossroads of the West is fully compliant with California Law and has never been in 
violation while at the OCFEC. 
 
During the Crossroads of the West shows, there is a strong security and law 
enforcement presence from OCFEC Safety & Security staff, the OC Sheriffs 
Department, and the California Department of Justice Firearms Division. 
 
 
California Law and Gun Shows 
 
There are no exemptions at gun shows in California compared to brick and mortar gun 
shops. Gun shows in California must comply with the same requirements as gun 
retailers including: 

 Mandatory 10-day waiting period 
 Federal background checks 
 DROS (Dealers Record of Sale) paperwork and fees 
 All transactions must be conducted by an FFL (Federal Firearms License) dealer 

 
California Law vs. Other States 
 
California has the strictest gun laws in the nation. As an example, the following 
compares California law to that of Nevada: 
 

NEVADA CALIFORNIA 
 A customer can purchase any gun and 

leave with it immediately. 
 There is a mandatory 10-day waiting 

period while the purchased gun is in 
the possession of an FFL dealer. 

 A customer can purchase a high capacity 
magazine. 

 It is a felony to possess a high capacity 
magazine. 

 Fully automatic weapons are legal to own.  It is a felony to possess an automatic 
weapon. 

 Private party-to-private party sales are 
legal. 

 Private party sales must be conducted 
by an FFL dealer. 

 Virtually any type of firearm can be sold.  Any firearm sold must be on the DOJ 
approved list as having passed firing, 
safety and drop tests. 

 
 
 


	November 18 Agenda
	CEO's Operational Annoucements & Updates
	OCFEC Finacials as of October 31, 2015 
	Business Unit Financial Results
	Cash Flow Summary by Business Unit
	Blance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Statement of Cash Flows

	Accounts Payable Checks Summary October 2015
	Electronic Payments SummaryOctober 2015
	December Events

	Consent Calendar
	Standard Agreements
	Rental Agreements
	Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements

	Minutes
	Board Meeting held October 22, 2015

	Governance Process
	A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
	B. Pacific Ampitheatre Seat Replacement Project 
	C. Review of Hourly Pay Rate for Seasonal Fair-Time Positions
	D. Discussion Regarding Gun Shows at the OCFEC




